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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Ninth Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Balkrishna Paper Mills
Limited will be held on Friday, the 9" September,
2022 at 3.00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the
following businesses:

Ordinary Business

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2022, and the
Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Ankit Poddar
(DIN: 03521731), who retires by rotation and,
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or

without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 149, 150, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, Shri Dileep H. Shinde (DIN:
00270687), who was appointed as an Additional
Director (in the category of Independent Director)
w.e.f. 7" August, 2021, pursuant to the provisions
of Section 161(1) of the Act, and who holds office
up to the date of this Annual General Meeting,
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company to hold
office for 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. August
07, 2021 to August 06, 2026 and whose office
shall not be liable to retire by rotation.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee thereof) and/or Shri Omprakash
Singh, Company Secretary be and are hereby
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be considered necessary,
proper or expedient, desirable to give effect to
the above Resolution.”
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4. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or

without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions
of Section 148 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s)
or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), and subject
to such other permissions as may be necessary,
M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No0.000024) appointed by
the Board of Directors of the Company as Cost
Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records
for the financial year ending March 31, 2023, be
paid remuneration of Rs.40,000/- (Rupees Forty
Thousand only) per annum plus applicable tax,
reimbursement of travelling and other out of
pocket expenses incurred by them at actuals, in
connection with the said audit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board
of Directors of the Company (including its
Committee thereof) and/or Shri Omprakash
Singh, Company Secretary be and are hereby
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds
and things as may be considered necessary,
proper or expedient, desirable to give effect to
the above Resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Omprakash Singh
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
(Membership No.FCS-4304)

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24" May, 2022.

Important Notes:

1.

©

In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be
followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020
dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated
May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated
January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars
issued from time to time, physical attendance
of the Members to the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) venue is not required and AGM be
held through video conferencing (VC) or other
audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members
can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM
through VC/OAVM.
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MCA by Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022
has extended the above exemptions till 31st
December, 2022 and accordingly in compliance
with applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) and the said Circulars (a) Notice
of 9" AGM along with Annual Report 2021-22 is
being sent only through electronic mode to those
Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company/Depositories. (b) 9" AGM of
the Members will be held through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April
08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and
cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance
Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However,
the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM and participate there at and
cast their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/
OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available
for 1000 members on first come first served
basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the AGM without restriction on account of
first come first served basis.

The deemed venue for Ninth e-AGM shall be the
Registered Office of the Company at A/7, Trade
World, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower
Parel (W), Mumbai — 400 013.

The attendance of the Members attending the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section
103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended),
and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13,
2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing
facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect

7.

10.

1.

12.

13.

®
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of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized agency.
The facility of casting votes by a member using
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting
on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in
respect of the items of Special Business as set
out above is annexed hereto.

Members holding share in physical form in multiple
folios either single names or joint holding in the
same order of names are requested to send the
share certificates to Registrar and Transfer Agent
(RTA) viz. M/s. Purva Sharegistry (India) Private
Limited, for consolidation into a single folio. In
case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only
such joint holder who is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in the securities market.

Members holdings shares in electronic form are
requested to intimate immediately their PAN, any
change in their address, E-mail id, Mobile No. or
bank mandates to their Depository Participants
with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts.

Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit their PAN, E-mail id, Mobile
No. or advise any change in their address or
bank mandates immediately to the Company/
Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) viz. M/s.
Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited.

SEBI has mandated that securities of
listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialised form with effect from 1st April,
2019. Accordingly, members holding shares in
physical form are advised to avail the facility of
dematerialization and the company/RTA has
stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of transfer
of shares in physical form.

Members, who have not registered their mobile
number & e- mail addresses so far, are requested
to update their mobile number and e-mail id in
the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending Annual Reports, Notices and for
future communication(s). For any communication,
the shareholders may also send requests to the
Company’s email id: opsingh@bpml.in or RTA
E-mail id: support@purvashare.com.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the facility for making
nomination is available for the Members in
respect of the shares held by them. Members
who have not yet registered their nomination
are requested to register the same by
submitting Form No. SH-13, which is available
with RTA, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private
Limited (PSIPL). Members are requested to
submit the said details to their DP in case the
shares are held by them in electronic form
and to PSIPL in case the shares are held in
physical form.

Details under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors
seeking appointment/re-appointment at AGM
form an integral part of the notice. The Directors
have furnished requisite declarations for their
appointment/re-appointment.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM along with Annual Report
2021-22 has been uploaded on the website of
the Company at www.bpml.in. The Notice can
also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively and the
AGM Notice is also available on the website of
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting
facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM
in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular
No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and
MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13,
2021.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books of the Company shall remain closed
from, Saturday 3™ September, 2022 to Friday,
ot September, 2022 (both days inclusive), for
the purpose of AGM.

A Member, whose name is recorded in the
register of members or in the register of beneficial
owners maintained by the depositories as on
the cut-off date i.e. 2" September, 2022, shall
be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting
as well as e-voting system on the date of AGM.

20.

21.

22.
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A person who is not a member as on the cut-
off date should treat this Notice of the AGM for
information purpose only. The voting rights of
members shall be in proportion to their shares of
the paid up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date of 2" September, 2022.

Any person, who acquires shares of the
Company and become member of the Company
after dispatch of the notice of the AGM and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 2™
September, 2022, shall be entitled to exercise
his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote
e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the
AGM by following the procedure mentioned
below. The members who have cast their vote
by remote e-voting, he/she shall not be allowed
to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

All documents referred to in the notice and
explanatory statement are open for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company during
office hours on all working days (from Monday
to Friday) except Saturday, Sunday & public
holidays, between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00 P.M. up
to the date of the AGM.

There is no unclaimed dividend amount lying
with the Company which needs to be transfer to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF),
under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR
REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday,
5% September, 2022 at 9.00 A.M and ends
Thursday, 8" September, 2022 at 5.00 P.M. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose
names appear in the Register of Members /
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off
date)i.e. 2" September, 2022 may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders
shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the
cut-off date, being 2" September, 2022.

Vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system:
The process and manner to vote electronically on

NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps”
which are given below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL
e-Voting system.

®
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

Login _method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holdin
securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.

. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this
will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for IDeAS” Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReq.jsp

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e NSDL and you will
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

“‘NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below

MNSDL Mobile App is available on

iﬂppﬁtore . Google Play
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Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through

. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to

. Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available

. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing

their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
login to Easi/Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com
home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
depository participants

meeting.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository
site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

Important note: Members who are unable to

retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at
abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding

securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e.

NSDL and CDSL.

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining

virtual meeting for shareholders other than
Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode and shareholders holding
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
1800 22 44 30

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with CDSL

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request
at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at 022- 23058738
or 022-23058542-43

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL: https:/
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholders/Members’
section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter
your User ID, your Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https:/
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your
vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

®
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Manner of
holding shares
i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL)
or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members

who hold shares
in demat account
with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8
Digit Client ID

For example, if your DP ID
is IN300*** and Client ID is
12***** then your user ID is
IN300***1 2******.

b) For Members

who hold shares

in demat account
with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example, if your Beneficiary
ID is 12************** then your
user ID is 12**************

c) For Members
holding shares in
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio
Number registered with the
company

For example, if folio number is
001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than

Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting,
then you can use your existing password to

login and cast your vote.

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’,
you need enter the ‘initial password’ and
the system will force you to change your

password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your
demat account or with the company, your
‘initial password’ is communicated to you
on your email id. Trace the email sent to
you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e.
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password
to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client
ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client
ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial

password’.

(ii)

If your email ID is not registered, please
follow steps mentioned below in process
for those shareholders whose email

ids are not registered.

6.
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If you are unable to retrieve or have not received
the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Clickon“EorgotUserDetails/Password?”(If
you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you
are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password
by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning
your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered
address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time
Password) based login for casting the votes
on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page
of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:-

How to cast your vote electronically and join the
Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

®

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able
to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and
General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of the Company for which you
wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the Annual
General Meeting. Company's EVEN is 120779.
For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting
page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options
i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.
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vi.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast
by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

vii. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution,

you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for Shareholders

1.

Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority Letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to naithanipcs@
gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.
co.in. Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e.
other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution/Power of Attorney/
Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload
Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed
under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login
to the e-voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?”
or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the
password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a
request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, National
Securities Depository Ltd., Trade World, ‘A’ Wing,
4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (w), Mumbai — 400
013, at the designated email address: evoting@
nsdl.co.in/pallavid@nsdl.co.in/.

Process for those shareholders whose email
ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration
of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please
provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back),
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) by email to opsingh@bpml.in.

2.
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In case shares are held in demat mode, please
provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy
of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
to opsingh@bpml.in. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode,
you are requested to refer to the login method
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method
for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a
request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user
id and password for e-voting by providing above
mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9,
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile
number and email ID correctly in their demat
account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR
e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS
UNDER:-

1.

Q)

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the
AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be
present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility
and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions
through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted
for any grievances connected with the facility
for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the
same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.



2& Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS
ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH

VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend
the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL
e-Voting system. Members may access by
following the steps mentioned above for Access
to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed
under “Join Meeting” menu against company
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM
link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link
for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/
Member login where the EVEN of Company will
be displayed. Please note that the members
who do not have the User ID and Password
for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and
Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in
the notice to avoid last minute rush.

FOR

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting
through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow
Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from
Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Members who would like to express their views/
have questions may send their questions in
advance atleast (10) ten days before AGM
mentioning their name, demat account number/
client id/folio number, email id, mobile number
at opsingh@bpml.in and the same will be
replied by the Company suitably. Members may
also register themselves as a speaker. Those
Members who have registered themselves as
a speaker and confirmed by Company will only
be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

1. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

i. Shri Prasen Naithani, Practising Company
Secretary (Membership No. FCS 3830),
Proprietor of M/s. P. Naithani & Associates,
Company Secretaries has been appointed
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as a Scrutinizer for conducting the remote
e-voting process and also the e-voting
system on the date of the AGM, in fair and
transparent manner.

ii. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the
conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count
the votes cast during the AGM, thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote
e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours
of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or
Company Secretary or a person authorised
by him in writing, who shall countersign the
same.

iii. The result declared along with the
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
Company’s website www.bpml.in and on
the website of NSDL https://www.evoting.
nsdl.com immediately. The Company
shall simultaneously forward the results to
National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited, where the shares of the
Company are listed.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Item 3

Based on recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and in terms of the
provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule
IV and any other applicable provisions of the Act and
the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on August 07, 2021 have appointed Shri
Dileep H. Shinde as an Additional Director (in the
category of Independent Director) of the Company
for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years w.e.f. August
07, 2021 to August 06, 2026, subject to approval of
members at ensuing Annual General Meeting. Shri
Dileep H. Shinde has given a declaration to the Board
that he meets the criteria of independence as provided
under section 149(6) of the Act.

A brief profile of Shri Dileep H. Shinde, Independent
Director to be appointed is given below:

Shri Dileep H. Shinde graduated from M. S. University
of Baroda in Engineering. He also possesses Post
Graduate Diploma in Marketing Management from
Mumbai. He was working with IFCI Limited as
General Manager heading its Regional Office at
Ahmedabad. He has overall exposures of 47 years (8
years of Industrial experience, 22 years’ experience
of Financial Institution and 17 years’ experience of
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private Investment Banking Companies). He has vast
experience in the areas such as Project Appraisal of
mediumand large size manufacturing andinfrastructure
projects, Risk Assessment, its analysis and mitigation,
Analysis of Technology, Project Implementation and
Monitoring, Asset Resolution through Restructuring/
OTS/ Legal Action, Merchant Banking, Business
Development, Resource Mobilization/Fund Raising,
Liaison with State/Central Governments, etc. He was
appointed as Nominee Director/ Independent Director
on many Companies in the past.

Shri Dileep H. Shinde does not hold by himself or for
any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in
the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri Dileep H. Shinde has
fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules
framed thereunder for appointment as Independent
Director and he is an independent of the management.
Copy of the draft letter for appointment of Shri Dileep
H. Shinde as an Independent Director setting out the
terms and conditions would be available for inspection
without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours
on any working day.

The Board considers that his association and valuable
guidance would be ofimmense benefit to the Company
and it is desirable to avail services of Shri Dileep H.
Shinde as an Independent Director. Accordingly, the
Board recommends passing of the Resolution at
Item No. 3 of the Notice as a Special Resolution, for
approval of the members.

Except Shri Dileep H. Shinde, being an appointee,
none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) of the Company or their relatives in any way
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the
resolution set out at ltem No.3 of the accompanying
Notice.

This Explanatory Statement together with the
accompanying Notice of the AGM may also be
regarded as a disclosure under Regulation 36(3) of
the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on
General Meetings (SS-2) of ICSI.
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Item No. 4

As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants,
Jaipur have been conducting Cost Audit of the
Company from the financial year 2016-17 onwards.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, has approved the re-appointment and
remuneration of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit
of the cost records of the Company for the financial
year ending March 31, 2023 at remuneration of
Rs.40,000/- (Rs. Forty Thousand) plus applicable tax,
reimbursement of travelling and other out of pocket
expenses incurred by them at actuals.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of
the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the
Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for
passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item
No. 4 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year
ending March 31, 2023.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the above resolution.

The Board of Directors in the interest of the Company,
recommends the resolution for approval of the
members.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Omprakash Singh
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
(Membership No.FCS-4304)
Place: Mumbai
Date: 24" May, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM NOS. 2 & 3 OF THE NOTICE.

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT IN THE ENSUING
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS
AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2 ON GENERAL MEETING):

Name of the | Date of Birth
Director, DIN
and Number
of Equity
Shares
held in the
Company

Date of Qualifications Expertise List of other Relationship
Appointment/ in specific Companies with other
Re-appointment functional (excluding Directors and
on the Board area Private other Key
Companies) Managerial
in which Personnel of the
Directorships Company.

and Committee
Chairmanships/
Memberships if

any.

Shri Ankit 30/10/1988 11/02/2015 Bachelor of Industrialist Directorship: None | Shri Anurag
Poddar Business with Poddar,
(DIN Administration | Specialized in Chairman and
03521731) Marketing and Managing
5,30,626 Finance Director
Equity Shares
Shri Dileep H. | 23/09/1950 07/08/2021 Graduate from | Finance, Directorship: None | None
Shinde M.S. University | Investment
(DIN of Baroda in Banking,
00270687) Engineering Merger and
Holding: NIL Acquisition,

Project

Appraisal

and Business

Development

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24" May, 2022

By Order of the Board of Directors

Omprakash Singh
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
(Membership No.FCS-4304)
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To,

DIRECTOR’S REPORTS

The Members,
Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Ninth
Annual Report of the Company along with Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31%
March, 2022.

1.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The summary of the financial performance of the
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Disclosure under Reg 32(7A) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2018.

The Proceeds of the preferential issue of Preference
Shares have been completely utilized as per the terms
of the issue of Preference Shares.

The Company has not issued shares with differential
voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat
equity. As on 31t March, 2022, none of the Directors
of the Company hold convertible instruments in the
Company.

Company for the financial year ended March 31,2022 5. RE-CLASSIFICATION UNDER REGULATION 31A
compared to the previous year ended March 31, 2021, OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015:
is given below: During the year under review, the Board of Directors at
(Xin Lakhs) its meeting held on 7™ August, 2021 had approved the
- request received from certain Promoters (“Outgoing
Particulars AP e Promoters”) for reclassifying them from “Promoter
Net Turn overand Other Income 24,458.94 12,925.23 and Promoter Group” category to “Public’ category
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation, | (1,188.02) | (1932.48) shareholders of the Company.
andTax Accordingly, BSE Limited and National Stock
Less:Depreciationand 617.35 633.46 Exchange of India Limited vide their respective
Amortisati ’ )
mortisation letter dated 28"December, 2021 had approved the
Profit / (loss) before Tax (450.71) | (2,565.94) Re-classification ofOutgoing Promoters to “Public’
Less:Provision forTaxation: category in terms with the provisions of Regulation
CurrentTax - - 31A of Listing Regulations. The summary of the
Deferred Tax (Net) 18.06 18.89 Shareholding  Pre-Reclassification =~ &Post Re-
Profit/ (Loss) afterTax (468.77) | (2,584.83) classification are as follows:-
Add/ (Less) : Other Comprehensive (4.49) 1.07 Re- Promoter Holding Public Holding
Income (et of taxes) classification Shares | Percentage | Shares | Percentage
Total Comprehensive Income/ (473.26) | (2,583.76) Held Held
(Expenses) for the year Pre- 6304874 | 5871 |4434970 | 41.29
2. OPERATIONS: Reclassification
uring the year under review, the Gross turnover and Post- 63,04,748 58.70 44,35,096 41.30
other Income of your Company was ¥ 24,458.94 Lakhs Reclassification
as compared t0%12,925.23Lakhs in the previous year. . REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT:
The net Loss for the year stood at ¥ 468.77Lakhs . ) .
. ; . There was no revision of the financial statements for
against Loss of ¥2,584.83Lakhs in the previous year. :
the year under review.
3. DIVIDEND 7. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
Your Directors have not recommended any dividend . .
) ) ; Global Economic Overview
for the financial year under review. ) i ]
4. SHARE CAPITAL: Global growth is projected to slow from an estimated

Allotment of Preference Shares:

During the year under review, the Company had
issued and allotted 50,00,000- 6.5% Non- Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each
aggregating ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores)
for cash at par as fully paid up to the Promoters,
Promoters Group and others on Preferential basis.
The said Preference Share are not listed with Stock
Exchanges.

The issued, subscribed and paid up Share Capital of
the Company as on 31t March, 2022 are as under:

-Equity Share Capital: ¥ 10.74 Crore
-Preference Share Capital:X 135 Crore

@

6.1 percent in 2021 to 3.6 percent in 2022 and 2023.
This is 0.8 and 0.2 percentage points lower for 2022
and 2023 respectively than projected in January.

Beyond 2023, global growth is forecast to decline to
about 3.3 percent over the medium term. War-induced
commodity price increases and broadening price
pressures have led to 2022 inflation projections of
5.7 percent in advanced economies and 8.7 percent
in emerging market and developing economies.
Multilateral efforts to respond to the humanitarian
crisis, prevent further economic fragmentation,
maintain global liquidity, manage debt distress, tackle
climate change, and end the pandemic are essential.

As we moved into the second half of this calendar
year, the global economy continues to face a series of
obstacles ranging from COVID-19 lockdowns, soaring



QQ Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd.

energy and food prices, climate crisis, geo-political
risks, to a broadening drive by central banks to combat
high inflation, making it hard to be optimistic for the
rest of 2022.The International Monetary Fund’s latest
World Economic Outlook rolled back growth prospects
for the world, fuelling fears of a global recession.

Indian Economic review

Two years into the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian
economy continues to be plagued by uncertainty,
withresurgent waves of mutant variants, supply-
chain disruptions, and a return of inflationin both
advancedand emerging economies.

Indian economy, as seen in quarterlyestimates of
GDP, has been staging a sustained recovery since
the second half of 2020-21. The economic impactof
the second wave of the pandemic inApril- June 2021
was muted comparedto the national lockdown of
theprevious year.

As per the National Statistical Office (NSO), the first
advance estimates expansion of GDP growth at 9.2
per cent in 2021-22. India, the largest economy in
the region, is expected to grow by 6.4 per cent in
2022, well below the 8.8 per cent growth in 2021, as
higher inflationary pressures and uneven recovery of
the labour market will curb private consumption and
investment.

The Indian economy was impacted by the second
wave of the pandemic, which affected economic
growth across the first quarter of the financial
year under review. [Economic momentum
wasdraggeddownbythesecondwaveofthepandemic.
Reboundin economic activity started togather
momentum in the second quarter, facilitated by theeb
bing of in fections, easing of restrictions and as harp
pick-up in the pace of vaccination.

India is exporting papers to various countries including
UAE, China, Saudi Arabia, Bangladesh, Vietnam, Sri
Lanka, Europe, USA, and African Countries. Exports
have been rising in the last few years due to capacity
expansion and technological up-gradation undertaken
by Indian paper mills, leading to better product quality
which has found wider acceptance globally. As per
IPMA, exports of coated paper and paperboard
increased by 100 per cent, uncoated writing and
printing paper by 98 per cent, tissue paper by 75 per
cent and kraft paper by 37 per cent.

Outlook

According to the IMF’s latest World Economic Outlook
projections, India’s real GDP will grow at 9% in 2021-
22 and 2022-23, and 7.1% in 2023-2024, making it the
world’s fastest growing major economy for all three
years. The Indian government continued to provide
fiscal support to the economy against the backdrop
of the pandemic in 2021. The authorities estimate that
the overall fiscal deficit will reach 6.9 percent of GDP
for the 2022 fiscal year, which is higher than deficits
prior to the pandemic.

@
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It is true that uncertainties in the global business
ecosystem will send crippling headwinds toward
India. Inflation and supply chain disruptions will
remain entrenched for some time. However, domestic
demand and the desire of global businesses to look
for more resilient and cost-effective investment and
export destinations, among other factors, will help
India ride this tide of headwinds. The optimism about
India’s economic recovery, although slightly bruised,
remains intact.

Company’s Overview

Your Company is engaged in manufacturing and
marketing of quality Coated Duplex Boards.During
the year under review, the Company produced 48,537
Tonnes of Paper Board as compared to 35,189 Tonnes
in the previous year. The Company has reduced
its losses from Rs.2584.83 Lakhs (FY 2020-21) to
Rs.468.77 Lakhs (FY 2021-22).

During the year under review, BPML's operating
performance was affected due to shortage of
domestic coal and high price of imported coal. Your
Company has suffered losses due to increase in cost
of raw materials, high Coal prices, sea freight. Further,
lockdown due to Covid-19 in the first quarter of the FY
2021-22, shut down of the plant due to Boiler passing
& temporary shut-down of plant during February/
March, 2022 resultant in less productions.

Internal Audit and Control

Your Company’s maintains all its records in ERP
Systems and maximum approvals are routed through
this system. The Company has laid down adequate
systems and supported by the procedures for
ensuring internal financial controls. The Company has
appointed an external audit firm as Internal Auditors for
day to day checking and monitoring the internal control
measures. Internal Auditors are present at the Audit
Committee Meetings where internal Audit Reports are
discussed along with management comments and the
final observation of the Internal Auditor. All the internal
and external audits are completed in time. There
are no non-compliances in respect of the processes
/ systems inplace and very well appreciated by the
external agencies conducting audit.

An effective controlis exercised by the top management
who monitors various key performance indicators
regularly throughManagement reviews & other means
and ensures that all the critical business functions
exceeds expectations with timelyinterventions as
required.

Opportunities, Threats and Risk

The Company has been strengthening its risk
management processes with the objective of
enhancing organisational stability and predictability.
Due to slowdown of the economy could have an
adverse effect on the revenues of the Company.The
existing Paperboard players alive to the emerging
international threats, have been aggressively
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pursuing quality improvement programs, coupled
with cost rationalization. Increasingly, more modern
technologies are sought to be implemented, with
added focus on environmental compliance.

Though there is considerable improvement in COVID
19 pandemic situation, there are still bottlenecks /
many challenges in thesupply chains due to non-
availability, long lead times, rejections due to quality
issues etc., in coal and raw materialprocurements
specially from foreign markets, thus severely affecting
production schedules. Delays in procurement
process impacts revenue growth. In spite of all these
hurdles, your company is quite optimistic on future
growthopportunities.

Human Resources

The Company has prioritized the personal
development ofits employees and the creation of a
future-ready leadershipteam. The Company’s talent
management system believes in internal grooming
of our employees, preparingthem to take on higher
responsibilities. Thishelped the Company strengthen
its internal talent pool andreduce its dependence on
external recruitment.The industrial relations at both
unit at Ambivali and Bhiwandiare cordial.

The HRdepartmentofthe Company was continuouslyin
touch with employees to guide and solve problems.
It created awareness regarding COVID-19 and
educatedemployees about precautions. The Company
conducted allinterviews through telephone and video
calls in referenceto the need for social distancing. The
Company prepared asystematic operating plan to
address COVID-19 after thelockdown is lifted.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The report contains forward looking statements
describing expectations, estimates, plans or words,
with similar meaning. The Company’s actual results
may differ from those projected, important factors that
could make the difference to the Company operations
include prices of raw material, power and finished
goods, changes in Government regulations, economic
developments globally and within India. The Company
cannot guarantee that the assumptions and estimates
in the ‘forward looking statements’ are accurate or will
be realized.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company is committed to maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere
to the Corporate Governance requirement set out
by the SEBI. The Company has complied with the
requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated
under the Listing Regulations, 2015 and accordingly,
the Report on Corporate Governance together with
Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under the aforesaid regulations, forms part
of the Annual Report.

10.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Forgo of Remuneration:

Shri AnuragPoddar, Chairman and Managing Director
and Shri AnkitPoddar, Executive Director have forgone
their monthly remuneration due to poor financial
position of the Company with effective from 1st April,
2019 and continue to do so till further communication.

Directors appointment / reappointment:

In pursuance of Article 86(1) of Articles of Association
of the Company, Shri AnkitPoddar, Director is liable to
retire by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting
and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.
Your Directors commend his re-appointment.

Shri Dileep H. Shinde, on recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, was
appointed as an Additional Independent Director
by the Board w.e.f. 7" August, 2021 and who holds
office upto the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting (AGM). Shri Dileep H. Shinde is eligible to be
appointed as an Independent Director. It is proposed
to appoint Shri Dileep H. Shinde as an Independent
Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of
five years from the date of appointment.

During the year under review, Shri Harish N. Motiwalla
has resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f4"
March, 2022 due to his preoccupation. The Board has
assented the same.

Brief particulars of Directors being appointed/
re-appointed as required by the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on
General Meetings are provided in the Annexure to the
notice convening the AGM of the Company.

Declarations by Independent Directors:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have
given requisite declarations that they meet the criteria
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) read
with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and
also Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015.

The Company has received declaration from all
Independent Directors of the Company confirming
that they meet with the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 as well as Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing
Regulations, 2015.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The composition, role, terms of reference as well
as powers of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company meets the requirements
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Composition:

The Committee comprises of three(3) Independent
Directors.
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The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee* and category of members, is given in the
table below:

ﬁz Name of the Director Category

1| Shri Harish N. Motiwalla # | '"dependent
Director

2 | ShriDileep H. Shinde # | 'Mdependent
Director

3 | ShriRakesh N. Garodia | '"dependent
Director

4 SmtMeghnaS.Shah Independent
Director

* During the year under review, one Meeting was held on
August 07, 2021.

# Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned w.e.f March 4, 2022.

## Board reconstituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and appointed Shri Dileep H. Shinde as
Chairman w.e.f. May 24, 2022.

Company’s Policy on appointment and remuneration
of Directors.

Remuneration Policy:

The Company has devised the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy for the selection, appointment
and remuneration of the Whole time Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel. The extract of Nomination and Remuneration
Policy is provided in the Corporate Governance Report
and forms part of this Annual Report.

The Company’s policy on remuneration for Directors and
Senior Management employees are displayed on the
website of the company at www.bpml.in.

Criteria for appointment of Independent Directors.

The Independent Directors shall be of high integrity
with relevant experience and expertise in the fields
of manufacturing, marketing, finance, taxation, law,
governance and general management, so as to have a
diverse Board.

Performance Evaluation.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for
evaluation of the performance of individual Directors,
the Board as a whole. Evaluation of performance is
undertaken annually.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and
the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors at a separately convened
meeting. The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board (excluding
the Director being evaluated). The Company has
implemented a system of evaluation on the basis of a
structured questionnaire which comprises evaluation
criteria taking into consideration various performance
related aspects.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process.

1.
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Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors : The
Non- executive Directors shall be entitled to receive
remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of
expenses for participation in Board/Committee meetings
and commission, if any, after approval of the members.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, your Directors to the best of
their knowledgehereby confirm:

a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

b) That the Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022
and of the Profit of the Company for that year under
review;

c) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for
the financial year on going concern basis;

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial
controls, which are adequate and were operating
effectively.

f)  The Directors have devised proper system to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES
AND POLICIES:

a. BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 4 times during the
year on the following dates in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and also
rules made thereunder.

June 04, 2021, August7, 2021, November13, 2021,
February12, 2022.

In addition to the above, Independent Directors
Meeting was also held on March11, 2022.

b. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board has the following Committees:
Audit Committee;
Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
Stakeholders Relationship Committee;
Risk Management Committee
Finance Committee;

2B

Share transfer Committee.
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The details of these Committees along with their
composition, number of meetings and attendance
at the meetings are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013, Extract of the Annual Return
in Form No. MGT - 9 for the financial year ended 31¢
March, 2022 made under the provisions of Section 92(3)
of the Act is attached as Annexure | which forms part
of this Report and is also available on the Company’s
websiteat www.bpml.in .

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not
accepted any fixed depositsand there were no unclaimed
deposits or interest thereon as on 31t March, 2022.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES,
INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 are given in the Notes to Financial Statements.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has framed a Whistle Blower Policy to
deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if
any. The details of the Policy are given in the Corporate
Governance Report and the policy is posted on the
Company’s websiteatwww.bpml.in.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into
during the financial year were in the ordinary course
of business and were on an arm’s length basis. There
are no materially significant related party transactions
made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or other related parties which
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

All related party transactions for the year are placed
before the Audit Committee as well as before the
Board for approval. The transactions entered into with
related parties are reviewed on a quarterly basis by
the Audit Committee.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved
by the Audit Committee and Board is uploaded on the
Company’s website at www.bpml.in.

The details of the transactions with Related Parties to
be provided in Form AOC-2 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-ll.

Members can refer to Note No. 37 to the Financial
Statements which set out related party disclosures.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

The Board of Directors of the Company has Risk
Management Framework to avoid events, situations
or circumstances which may lead to negative
consequences on the Company’s businesses, and
define a structured approach to manageuncertainty
and to make use of these in their decision making

19.

23. SEXUAL

24. DISCLOSURE
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pertaining to all business divisions and corporate
functions. Risk Management Policy is available on
Company’s website at www.bpml.in.

Furtheryour Board has constituted a Risk Management
Committee inter alia, to monitor and renew the risk
management framework.

DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS
ORCOURTS OR TRIBUNAL

Duringtheyearunderreview,therewerenoordershave
been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal
which can have impacton the going concernstat us
and the Company’s operations in future.

20. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There were nomaterial changes and commitments
which could affect the Company’s financial position
have occurred between theendof the financial year of
the Company and date of this report.

21.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY

ABSORPTION AND
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as required under the provisions of
Section134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts Rules,
2014 inrespect of conservation ofenergy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo etc.
are furnished in Annexure Il which forms part of this
Report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

22. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Industrial relations with staffand workmen during the
year under review continued to be cordial.

HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
&REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has formulated and implemented
a policy of prevention of sexual harassmentat the
work place with mechanism of loading red ressal
complaints. During the year under review, there were
no complaints reported to the Board.

UNDER  SECTION 197(12)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER RULE 5 OF
COMPANIES(APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION)
RULES, 2014:

The information required pursuant to Section 197
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 inrespect of
employees of the Company will be provided upon
request interms of section 196 of the Act. The Report
is beings enttoall the Shareholders of the Company
and of heren titled there to, excluding the informati on
particulars of whichis available for inspection by the
Member sat the Registered office of the Company
during business hours on working day sof the
Company upto the date of theensuing Annual General
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Meeting. Members interested in obtaininga copy there
of, may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

25. AUDITORS

The matters related to Audit or sand their Reports are
as under:

OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH
2022:

The observations made by the Statutory Auditors in
their report for the financial year ended 31st March
2022 read with the explanatory notest here in are
self- explanatory and therefore,do not call for any
further explanation or comments from the Boardunder
Section134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, there were no adversere marks or
qualifications or reservations in the audit report
submitted by auditors.

COST AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Board
of Directors have appointed M/s.K.G. Goyal &
Associates,CostAccountants,asacostauditorof
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 at
a remuneration of Rs.40,000/-per annum plus
applicable tax, reimbursement of travelling and other
amount of pocket expenses incurred by them at
actuals.

There munerati on to be paid to Cost auditors
requirer atification by the shareholders and
accordingly necessary resolution for ratification for
seeking approval of members is included in Notice of
ensuing AGM.

Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended 31¢
March, 2021 was filed with Central Government on
18t October, 2021.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
GMJ & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice
to under take Secretarial Audit for the financial year
2022-23.

There is no Secretarial audit qualification for the
year under review.M/s GMJ & Associates, Company
Secretaries has issued Certificate dated24™ May,
2022 certifying that none of the Directors on the
Board of the Company during the Financial year
2021-22 has been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors of the
company by SEBI, MCA or any such other Statutory
authority.

SecretarialAudit Report and Secretarial Compliance
Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022
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and Certificate of Non Disqualification of Directors
are annexed herewith as Annexure — IV.

26. CHANGE IN REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER

AGENT

During the year under review, your Company has
changed its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent from
Link Intime India Private Limited to PurvaSharegistry
(India) Private Limited w.e.f. 18.02.2022.

27. INSURANCE

All the properties / assets including buildings,
furniture/ fixtures, and insurable interest soft he
Company are adequately insured.

28. GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting
is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions on these items during the year
under review:

i. No unclaimed dividend amount lying with the
Company which needs to be transferred to
Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares)
to employees of the Company under any
scheme.

iii. Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors
under sub-section (12) of section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the Central
Government

iv. The details of application made or any
proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the
year alongwith their status as at the end of the
financial year.

v. The details of difference between amount of the
valuation done at the time of one-time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from
the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof.

29. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the banks, government authorities,
customers, vendors, dealers, agent and shareholders
during the year under review. Your Directors also wish
to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for
the committed services by the Company’s executives,
staff and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Anurag P. Poddar

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00599143

Place:Mumbai
Date:24"May, 2022
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ANNEXURE |
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN : | L21098MH2013PLC244963
Registration Date :129.06.2013
Name of the Company : | Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company | : | Public Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered Office and | : | A/7, Trade World, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W),
contact details Mumbai — 400 013. Tel No. 022-6120 7900; Fax No. 022- 6120 7999

Whether Listed Company | Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of | : | Link Intime India Private Limited.

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083.
Tel.:022 4918 6270/ 022 4918 6000; Fax: 022 4918 6060

Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sr. | Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the company
No. | products/services

1 Manufacturing of Paper and 280 100%
Paper Board

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company has no subsidiary as on date.

I. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) :

i. CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING:

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
1-04-2021 31-03-2022 during the
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) Individuals/ HUF 6267755 0.00| 6267755 58.36 | 6267685 0.00| 6267685 58.36 -0.001
(b) Central Govt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(c) State Govt(s) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(d) Bodies Corp. 37119 0.00 37119 0.35 37063 0.00 37063 0.35 -0.001
(e) Banks / FI 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(f) Any Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sub Total (A)(1): 6304874 0.00 | 6304874 58.71| 6304748 0.00| 6304748 58.70 -0.001
(2) Foreign
(a) NRI Individuals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(b) Other Individuals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
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(c) Bodies Corp. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(d) Banks / Fl 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(¢) Any Other.... 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000

Sub Total (A)(2): 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000

Total shareholding of

Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 6304874 0.00| 6304874 58.71| 6304748 0.00| 6304748 58.70 -0.001
B. Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(b) Banks/ Private Banks/ FI 27 0.00 27 0.00 27 0.00 27 0.00 0.000
(c) Central Govt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(d) State Govt(s) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(e) Venture Capital Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(f) Insurance Companies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(g) Flls 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(1) Foreign Venture Capital 0.0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
(i) Others (specify) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (B)(1): 27 0.00 27 0.00 27 0.00 27 0.00 0.000
(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian 652067 83 652150 6.07 433417 83 433500 4.04 -2.036
(i) Overseas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share 2408566 107802 | 2516368 2343 | 2453196 104692 2557888 23.82 0.387
capital uptoRs. 1 lakh

(ii) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share
capita i oxteas of Ra 930915 33332| 964247 898 | 1031452 33332| 1064784 9.91 0.936
1 lakh
(c) Others (specify)
Unclaimed Or Suspense Or 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Escrow Account
IEPF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
LLP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 885 0.00 885 0.01 0.008
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NBFC registered with RBI 30 0.00 30 0.00 9030 0.00 9030 0.08 0.084
Foreign Nationals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Qualified Foreign Investor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Alternate Investment Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
N.R.I(Repat& Non Repat) 37135 000 37135 0.35 65061 0.00 65061 0.61 0.260
Foreign Corporate Bodies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Trust 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Hindu Undivided Family 251463 83| 251546 234| 254244 83| 254327 2.37 0.026
Clearing Members 13467 0.00| 13467 0.13 49504 0.00 49594 0.46 0.336
Depository Receipts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Market Makers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Sub-total (B)(2): 4293643 | 141300 | 4434943 41.29| 4296879| 138190 | 4435069 41.30 0.001
I"(t;)'(:)‘i?g;(%ha’eh°'di“9 B) | 4203670 141300 | 4434970 4129| 4296906| 138190 | 4435006 41.30 0.001
:;rsé‘;:: gﬂgg‘s’ Custodian 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
Grand Total(A + B + C) 10598544 | 141300 | 10739844 100.00 | 10601654 | 138190 | 10739844 100.00 0.000

ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
01-04-2021 31-03-2022 o
% changes
Sr. % of shar in share
Shareholder’s Name % of total % of shares % of total ° Tej :d?s holding
No. No.of shares of pledged/ No.of shares of ene:um%ered during the
shares the encumbered shares the to total year
company | to total shares company shares
1 RameshkumarDharaprasadPoddar 770678 7.18 0.00 | 770678 7.18 0.00 0.00
2 AshadeviRameshkumarPoddar 795940 7.41 0.00 | 795940 7.41 0.00 0.00
3 PawankumarDharaprasadPoddar 164312 1.53 0.00 | 164312 1.53 0.00 0.00
4 MadhudeviPawankumarPoddar 265314 247 0.00 | 265314 247 0.00 0.00
5 AvnishPawankumarPoddar 530626 4.94 0.00 | 530626 4.94 0.00 0.00
6 AnuragPawankumarPoddar 606389 5.65 0.00 | 606389 5.65 0.00 0.00
7 SangeetaPramodkumarPoddar 505366 4.71 0.00 | 505366 4.71 0.00 0.00
8 Gaurav PramodPoddar 530626 4.94 0.00 | 530626 4.94 0.00 0.00
9 AnkitPoddar 530626 4.94 0.00 | 530626 4.94 0.00 0.00
10 | ShrikishanDharaprasadPoddar 770689 718 0.00 | 770689 718 0.00 0.00
" VibhadeviShrikishanPoddar 795929 741 0.00 | 795929 741 0.00 0.00
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12 | HarshitShrikishanPoddar 1 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 | Abhishek S Poddar 1" 0.00 0.00 1 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 GitadeviDharaprasadPoddar 1168 0.01 0.00 1168 0.01 0.00 0.00
15 GPP ENTERPRISES LLP 37011 0.34 0.00 37011 0.34 0.00 0.00
16 | PKP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00 0.00 13 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 | HSP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00 0.00 13 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 | DPP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00 0.00 13 0.00 0.00 0.00
19 | S P Finance And Trading Ltd 5 0.00 0.00 5 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 | Vishal Furnishings Ltd 5 0.00 0.00 5 0.00 0.00 0.00
21 Sanchna Trading & Fin. Ltd. 3 0.00 0.00 3 0.00 0.00 0.00
22 | Rajiv ArvindkumarPoddar * 20 0.00 0.00 20 0.00 0.00 0.00
23 | VKP Enterprises LLP * 13 0.00 0.00 13 0.00 0.00 0.00
24 | ArvindkumarMahabirprasadPoddar* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
25 | VijaylaxmiArvindkumarPoddar* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
26 | ShyamlataSureshkumarPoddar* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
27 | RishabhSureshkumarPoddar* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
28 | RAP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
29 | TMP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
30 | AKP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
31 Khushboo Rajiv Poddar® 10 0.00 0.00 10 0.00 0.00 0.00
32 | Balgopal Holding & Traders Ltd* 5 0.00 0.00 5 0.00 0.00 0.00
33 f’l_ci)rdn(iita:dBrothers Investment Private 5 0.00 0.00 5 0.00 0.00 0.00
34 | S P Investrade (India) Limited* 3 0.00 0.00 3 0.00 0.00 0.00

* These Promoters are reclassified from 'Promoter/ Promoter Group Category' to 'Public Category' under Regulation 31A of SEBI(LODR) Regulations,

2015 w.e.f. 28/12/2021 as per BSE and NSE Approval Letters.

iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE):

Sr. | Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding at
No. beginning of the year the end of the year
01-04-2021 31-03-2022
No of Shares | % of Total | No. of Shares | % change in
Shares of the shareholding
Company during the
year
1 RameshkumarDharaprasadPoddar 770678 7.18
at the end of the year 770678 7.18
2 AshadeviRameshkumarPoddar 795940 7.41
at the end of the year 795940 7.41
3 PawankumarDharaprasadPoddar 164312 1.53
at the end of the year 164312 1.53
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4 MadhudeviPawankumarPoddar 265314 2.47

at the end of the year 265314 2.47
5 AvnishPawankumarPoddar 530626 4.94

at the end of the year 530626 4.94
6 AnuragPawankumarPoddar 606389 5.65

at the end of the year 606389 5.65
7 SangeetaPramodkumarPoddar 505366 4.71

at the end of the year 505366 4.71
8 Gaurav PramodPoddar 530626 4.94

at the end of the year 530626 4.94
9 AnkitPoddar 530626 4.94

at the end of the year 530626 4.94
10 | ShrikishanDharaprasadPoddar 770689 7.18

at the end of the year 770689 7.18
11 | VibhadeviShrikishanPoddar 795929 7.41

at the end of the year 795929 7.41
12 | HarshitShrikishanPoddar 11 0.00

at the end of the year 1 0.00
13 |Abhishek S Poddar 1 0.00

at the end of the year 11 0.00
14 | GitadeviDharaprasadPoddar 1168 0.01

at the end of the year 1168 0.01
15 |GPP ENTERPRISES LLP 37011 0.34

at the end of the year 37011 0.34
16 |PKP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00

at the end of the year 13 0.00
17 |HSP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00

at the end of the year 13 0.00
18 | DPP Enterprises LLP 13 0.00

at the end of the year 13 0.00
19 |S P Finance And Trading Ltd 5 0.00

at the end of the year 5 0.00
20 | Vishal Furnishings Ltd 5 0.00

at the end of the year 5 0.00
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21 | Sanchna Trading & Fin. Ltd. 3 0.00

at the end of the year 3 0.00
22 | Rajiv ArvindkumarPoddar* 20 0.00

at the end of the year 20 0.00
23 | VKP Enterprises LLP* 13 0.00

at the end of the year 13 0.00
24 | ArvindkumarMahabirprasadPoddar* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
25 | VijaylaxmiArvindkumarPoddar* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
26 | ShyamlataSureshkumarPoddar* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
27 |RishabhSureshkumarPoddar* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
28 |RAP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
29 | TMP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
30 |AKP Enterprises LLP* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
31 | Khushboo Rajiv Poddar* 10 0.00

at the end of the year 10 0.00
32 |Balgopal Holding & Traders Ltd* 5 0.00

at the end of the year 5 0.00
33 |Poddar Brothers Investment Private Limited* 5 0.00

at the end of the year 5 0.00
34 | S P Investrade (India) Limited* 3 0.00

at the end of the year 3 0.00
* These Promoters are reclassified from Promoter/ Promoter Group Category to Public Category under Regulation
31A of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 w.e.f. 28/12/2021 as per BSE and NSE Approval Letters.




QQ Balkrishna Paper Mills Lid.

Annual Report 2021-2022

iv. '’ SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS
AND HOLDERS OF GDR’S AND ADR’S):
Sr. | Name of Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding at
No of the year 01-04-2021 the end of the year 31-03-2022
No. of % of total No. of Shares | % of total
Shares shares of the shares of the
Company Company
1. | KishanGopalMohta 110400 1.03 110400 1.03
2. | MSPL Limited 81583 0.76 170005 1.58
3. | Aadishu Securities Private Ltd 70000 0.65 70000 0.65
4. | MehulKantilalMota 60000 0.56 20000 0.19
5. | Sunil MahadevGhadage 54300 0.51 71575 0.67
6. | KamleshRamniklal Mehta(Huf) 50000 0.47 50000 0.47
7. | Shaver KaitanDrago 39315 0.37 30337 0.28
8. | Sangeeta Jain 32359 0.30 22200 0.21
9. | ShyamakRamyar Tata 31528 0.29 31528 0.29
10. | Prasad P. Shetty 23716 0.22 59681 0.56
v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):
Sr. Name of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year the end of the Year
01-04-2021 31-03-2022
No. of | % of total shares No. of % of total shares

shares of the Company shares of the Company
1. AnuragPoddar 606389 5.65 606389 5.56
2. AnkitPoddar 530626 4.94 530626 4.94
3. Shrutisheeldhanwar 25 0 25 0
4. Omprakash Singh 5 0 5 0
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Il. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Particulars Secured Loan Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans indebtednes
deposit

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 70.28 30.60 7.1 107.99
ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 1.71 0.00 1.71
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.07 0.00 0.00 0.07
Total (i+ii+iii) 70.35 32.31 7.1 109.77

Change in Indebtedness during the financialyear

Net Change (18.30) (20.56) (0.27) (39.13)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 52.02 11.75 6.93 70.70
ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.03
Total (i+ii+iii)

Total (i+ii+iii) 52.05 11.75 6.93 70.70

Il REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Executive Director, Whole time Director )
(Amount inX)

Name of Directors Total Amount
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration
No. Anurag Poddar * | Ankit Poddar * | Shrutisheel
Jhanwar

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) - - 17,52,000 17,52,000
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income tax Act, 1961 - - 21,50,570 21,50,570

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 | Stock Option - - - -

3 | Sweat Equity - - - -

4 | Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -

- Others, specify... - - - -

5 | Others, please specify - - - -

Total (A) - - 39,02,570 39,02,570

Ceiling as per Act 42,00,000 p.a 42,00,000 p.a| 42,00,000 p.a

* Shri AnuragPoddar, Chairman and Managing Director and Shri AnkitPoddar, Executive Director have forgone their
monthly remuneration due to poor financial position of the Company with effect from 1st April, 2019 and continue to

do so till further communication.
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(Amount in %)

Name of Directors

Total

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Amount [
No. Harish N. | Rakesh N. | Meghna Ramanlal B.
Motiwalla | Garodia S. Shah Golecha

1. Independent Directors
* Fee for attending Board/Committee meetings 70,000 1,02,500 92,500 60,000 3,25,000
* Fee for attending board / committee meetings - - - - -
» Commission - - - - -
* Others, please specify - - - - -
Total (2) - - - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 70,000 1,02,500 92,500 60,000 3,25,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

11% of the net profit of the Company for all the Directors including

MD/ED/WTD

*Shri Dileep H. Shinde was appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f August 07, 2021.
# Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f March 04, 2022.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/ ED/WTD:

Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Company Secretary

CFO*

Total

1 Gross salary

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section

21,47,659

21,47,659

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17/(2) Income tax Act,

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

a|hlw|N

Others, please specify

Total

21,47,659

21,47,659

* Please refer to the Remuneration of Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar who is acting as CFO without any additional
remuneration which he is receiving in capacity of Whole-time Director.



QQ Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd.

IV. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
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Type

Section of the
Companies
Act

Brief
Description

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

Details of Penalty
[ Punishment /
Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
(RD/NCLT
/ COURT)

A.Company :

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. Directors :

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. Other Officers In Default :

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

N\

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 24, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anurag P. Poddar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00599143
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ANNEXURE Il

Particulars of Contracts/ Arrangements with Related Parties
(Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under
third proviso thereto:

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactionsnot at arm’s length basis: NONE.
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactionsat arm’s length basis.
A. The Company has issued 50,00,000 — 6.5 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of [1 100/- each

aggregating (150,00,00,000/- on Preferential basis to Promoters / Promoters Group & Associates and Others. The
Shareholders have approved the same through Postal Ballot by remote E-voting on 14th March, 2021.

The Allotment Committee of Board of Directors had allotted 50,00,000 -6.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares, to the below mentioned Preference Shareholders, as under:

Name(s) of the Nature of Duration of the contracts/ Salient terms of the contracts Date(s) of Amount paid
Related party contracts/ arrangements/transactions. or arrangements or transaction approval by as advances.
and Nature of arrangements/ including the value Allotment Total Face
relationship transactions. Committee of Value (1)
the Board
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Vishal Furnishings Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 2,75,000 -6.5% Non- 2,75,00,000/-
Ltd / Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference 05/04/2021
Promoters Group Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of (1 100/- each aggregating
Board [12,75,00,000/- on Preferential basis
SP Finance and Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 5,25,000- 6.5% Non- 5,25,00,000/-
Trading Limited / Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference 05/04/2021
Promoters Group Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of [ 100/- each aggregating
Board 115,25,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Sanchna Trading Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 4,50,000- 6.5% Non- 4,50,00,000/-
and Finance Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Limited/ Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of [ 100/- each aggregating 05/04/2021
Promoters Group Board [14,50,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Beetee Textile Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 5,00,000- 6.5% Non- 5,00,00,000/-
Industries Ltd/ Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Other than Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of [ 100/- each aggregating 05/04/2021
Promoter and Board [15,00,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Promoters Group
Santigo Textile Mills | Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 2,50,000- 6.5% Non- 2,50,00,000/-
Limited/ Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference 05/04/2021
Promoters Group Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of (| 100/- each aggregating
Board 2,50,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Dpp Enterprises Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 11,00,000 - 6.5% 11,00,00,000 /-
LLP/ Redeemable the date of their issue or as Non- Cumulative Redeemable
Promoter Group Preference Shares may be determined by the Preference Shares of [1 100/- each 05/04/2021
Board aggregating (111,00,00,000 /- on
Preferential basis
Vishal Furnishings Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 8,00,000 -6.5% Non- 8,00,00,000/-
Ltd / Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference 07/06/2021
Promoters Group Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of 1 100/- each aggregating
Board [18,00,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Santigo Textile Mills | Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 4,00,000- 6.5% Non- 4,00,00,000/-
Limited/ Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Other than Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of (1 100/- each aggregating 24/07/2021
Promoters & Board [14,00,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Promoters Group
Beetee Textile Non-Cumulative, Not exceeding 20 years from Issued and allotted 7,00,000- 6.5% Non- 7,00,00,000/-
Industries Ltd Redeemable the date of their issue or as Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Other than Preference Shares may be determined by the Shares of (1 100/- each aggregating 13/08/2021
Promoters & Board [17,00,00,000/- on Preferential basis
Promoters Group
Total | 50,00,00,000/-

@



QQ Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd.

A. Sale of Warehouse at Bhiwandi
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Building No. F3 & F4,
Rajlaxmi Logistic Park,
BhiwandiNasik Road,
Village Dhamngaon,
TalukaBhiwandi, Dist.
Thane, admeasuring about
80,000 Sq feet area

Name(s) of the Nature of contracts/ Duration of Salient terms of the contracts Date(s) of approval | Total amount
Related party arrangements/ the contracts/ or arrangements or transaction of the Board/ AGM paid (1)
and Nature of transactions. arrangements/ including the value
relationship transactions.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f)
Siyaram Silk Sale of Warehouse (Land One time Sale of Warehouse situated at Board: 04.06.2021 19,08,00,000/-
Mills Limited & Building) situated at arrangement Bhiwandi admeasuring about AGM: 23.07.2021

80,000 sq meters for total sale
consideration of Rs. 19.08 Crores.
Board has approved the transactions
on 04.06.2021 and Shareholders
approval obtained in 8" AGM

on 23.07.2021 for related party
transactions under Regulation 23 of
SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 and

Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013.

Place : Mumbai

Date : 24th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anurag P. Poddar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00599143
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ANNEXURE -l

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

)

In)

)

i)

ii)

The Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

(i)

(ii)

Electrical Energy:

The Company is regularly monitoring the over all consumption of energy periodically during the year and
losses if any are identified and suitable improvement action carried out immediately.

Coal/Fuel Oil Consumption:

The Company is carrying out regular maintenance of steam lines / steam traps and user equipments to ensure
high efficiency levels through out the year, and new improvement sarere viewed regularly and implemented
whereverfound suitable.

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The Company has taken various initiatives for utilizing alternate energy efficient sources like Tubelight with LED
and high efficiency motor.

The Capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

The Company is reviewing various proposals for reduction in consumption of energy, mainly by way of replacement
of existing equipments by modern and energy efficient equipments.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Efforts made in technology absorption:

a)

b)

The Company has an in-house Research and Development Department (R & D) which carries out activities
such as product and quality improvement, development of new designs, new products, cost control and
energy conservation.

The Company has been developing in-house modifications/improvements in process technology in its various
manufacturing sections which, when found suitable, are integrated into the regular manufacturing operation.

Benefitsderived as a result of the above:

a.
b.
c.
d.

Quality improvement
Energy conservation.
New product development

Cost Reduction

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):
Not Applicable.

Expenditure on R&D ([1in Lakhs):

(a) Capital : NIL

(b) Recurring: NIL

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGEEARNINGS &OUTGO:

@)
(ii)

Foreign exchange used : 116221 Crores

Foreign Exchange Earned:1 107.93 Crores

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anurag P.Poddar

Place: Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 24" May, 2022 DIN: 00599143
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ANNEXURE IV
FORM NO.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited

A/7, Trade World, Kamala City,

SenapatiBapat Marg,

Lower Parel (West),

Mumbai - 400 013

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to

good corporate practices by Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was

conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 315 March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions of the applicable

Acts listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company

for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of External
Commercial Borrowings. The provisions of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment are not
applicable to the company during the review period;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(“SEBI Act”) viz:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;
[Not applicable during the period of audit].

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and SEBI (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; [Not applicable
during the period of audit].

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not
applicable during the period of audit].

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable
during the period of audit].

i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not applicable during
the period of audit].

vi.  We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanisms formed

by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations which are mentioned as under:
a) The Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made thereunder;

b)  The Industries (Development and Regulation) Act, 1951;

c) Labour laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company;
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d) Acts and Rules prescribed under prevention and control of pollution;

e) Acts and Rules relating to Environmental protection, energy conservation and hazardous substances and
chemicals;

f) Acts and Rules relating to boilers, electricity explosives, fire, etc.;

g) Acts as prescribed under Direct and Indirect Tax and Goods and Service Tax;

h)  The Trade Marks Act, 1999 and The Copy Right Act, 1957;

i) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009;

j) Acts as prescribed under Shops and Establishment Act of various local authorities.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b)  The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited read with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings, agenda and

detailed notes on agenda were sent well in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the minutes
of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting
views have been recorded.

We further report that based on the information provided and the representation made by the Chief Financial Officer/

Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion there are adequate

systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and

ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various statutory/regulatory authorities

including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever found necessary.

We further report that during the audit period under review, the Company has undertaken following event/action(s) having

a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards

etc.:

a) The Company has issued and allotted 50,00,000 — 6.5 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 50.00 crores on preferential basis to the Promoters/Promoters
Group during the year ended 315t March, 2022. The said 6.5 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares are
not listed with the Stock Exchanges.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
[CS PRABHAT MAHESHWARI]

PARTNER

M. No.:FCS 2405

PLACE : MUMBAI COP No.:1432
DATE : 24TH MAY, 2022 UDIN:F002405D000375668

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure | and forms an integral part of
this report.
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To,

ANNEXURE I

The Members,

Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited,

A/7, Trade World, Kamala City,

Senapati Bapat Marg,

Lower Parel (West),

Mumbai — 400 013

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events, etc.

5.  The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

[CS PRABHAT MAHESHWARI]

PARTNER

M. No.:FCS 2405

PLACE : MUMBAI COP No.:1432
DATE : 24TH MAY, 2022 UDIN:F002405D000375668
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF BALKRISHNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2022
To,
The Members,
Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited
A/7, Trade World, Kamala City,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (West),
Mumbai - 400 013

We, GMJ & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries have examined:

a) allthe documents and records made available to us and explanations provided by Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited
(“the listed entity”) bearing CIN: L21098MH2013PLC244963,

b)  the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
c) website of the listed entity,

d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification, for the year
ended 31st March, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines
issued thereunder; and

b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined,
include:-

a)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

b)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable to the company during the review period);

c)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

d)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
company during the review period);

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;(Not applicable to
the company during the review period);

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not
applicable to the company during the review period);

b)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference
Shares) Regulations, 2013; (Not applicable to the company during the review period);

c)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
d)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; and
based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during the Review Period:

a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:-

Sr. Compliance Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the Practicing
No. Requirement Company
(Regulations/ circulars Secretary

I guidelines including
specific clause)

NIL
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b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder in so far as it appears from our examination of those records,

c) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries
either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through
various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

Sr. No

Action taken by

Details of
violation

Details of action taken E.g.
fines, warning letter, debar-
ment, etc.

Observations/ Remarks
of the Practicing Com-
pany

Secretary, if any

d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Sr.
No

Observations of
the Practicing
Company Secretary
in the previous
reports

Observations made
in the secretarial

Actions taken by the
listed entity, if any

Comments of the
Practicing Company

compliance report for the
year ended 31t March,
2021

Secretary on the
actions taken by the
listed entity

Not Applicable

We further report that during the review period:

a) The Company has issued and allotted 50,00,000 — 6.5 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 50.00 crores on preferential basis to the Promoters/Promoters
Group during the year ended 31t March, 2022. The said 6.5 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
are not listed with the Stock Exchanges.

PLACE:MUMBAI
DATE:24™ MAY, 2022

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

[CS PRABHAT MAHESHWARI]
PARTNER

M. No.:FCS 2405

COP No.:1432
UDIN:F002405D000372368
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members,
Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited
A/7, Trade World, Kamala City,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (West),
Mumbai - 400 013.

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited having CIN: L21098MH2013PLC244963and having registered office at A/7, Trade
World, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai - 400 013 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on 31t March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
Statutory Authority.

Sr. Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment
No. in Company

1 Rakesh Kumar Garodia 00143438 11/02/2015

2 Anurag Poddar 00599143 11/02/2015

3 Ankit Poddar 03521731 11/02/2015

4 Shrutisheel Jhanwar 03582803 11/02/2015

5 Meghna Sukhesh Shah 07081068 11/02/2015

6 Dileep Himmatrao Shinde 00270687 11/02/2015

7 Harish Narendra Motiwalla* 00029835 11/02/2015

* Harish Narendra Motiwalla has resigned as an Independent Director with effect from 4" March, 2022.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

[CS PRABHAT MAHESHWARI]
PARTNER

M. No.:FCS 2405

COP No.:1432
UDIN:F002405D000375932

PLACE:MUMBAI
DATE:24™ MAY, 2022



QQ Balkrishna Paper Mills Ltd.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR 2021-22

Company’s Philosophy

Balkrishna’s philosophy on Corporate Governance
aims at achieving long term viability of the business
by taking into consideration the customers’
satisfaction in terms of quality, cordial relationship with
shareholders. Corporate Governance is a continuous
process that aims to align interest of the Company
with its shareholders and other stakeholders. The
principal characteristics of corporate governance are
transparency, independence, accountability, fairness
and responsibility. The company has a strong legacy
of fair, transparent and ethical governance practices
and compliance with statutory and legal requirements.
The Company has formulated, interalia, various
policy documents and introduced best practices of
governance like Code of Conduct, Prohibition of
Insider Trading Policy, Whistle Blower Policy etc

The Company’s policies on Corporate Governance
and compliance thereof in respect of specific areas

Annual Report 2021-2022

for the year ended March 31, 2022, as per the format
prescribed by SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
(the Listing Regulations) are set out below for the
information of the shareholders of the Company.

Board of Directors
Composition:

The Board of Directors of the Company has an
optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive
and Independent Directors. As on March 31, 2022, the
Board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors, out of which 3
(Three) are Executive and Non Independent Directors,
and 3(Three) are Non-Executive and Independent
Directors. The Chairman is an Executive Director
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company.

The names and categories of the Directors on the
Board, their attendance at Board Meetings during
the year and at the last Annual General Meeting,
as also the number of Directorships and Committee
Memberships held by them in other companies are
given below:

Attendance Directorship Comnmittee Positions ***
Name of Directors Category of Directors B Last | in other Public Chai Memb
oard AGM | Companies** airman ember

Shri Anurag P. Poddar * Chairman and Managing 4 Yes - - -
Director —
Executive & Non-
Independent Director

Shri Ankit P. Poddar * Executive & Non- 4 Yes - - -
Independent Director

Shri Dileep H Shinde # Non-Executive & 4 N.A - - -
Independent Director

Shri Harish N Motiwalla ## Non-Executive & 3 Yes 7 4 2
Independent Director

Shri Rakesh N Garodia Non-Executive & 5 Yes 4 1 4
Independent Director

Smt. Meghna S. Shah Non-Executive & 5 Yes - - -
Independent Director

Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar * | Executive & Non- 4 Yes - - -
Independent Director

Term of Office of the above Executive & Non-
Independent Directors is of 3 Consecutive years
commencing from February 11, 2021 to February 10,
2024.

Shri Dileep H. Shinde was appointed as an Additional
Independent Director w.e.f August 07, 2021.

Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned as an Independent
Director w.e.f. March 04, 2022.

** The Directorship held by Directors as mentioned

above, do not include Alternate Directorships and
Directorships in foreign Companies, companies
registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Private Limited Companies.

*** Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committee

and Stakeholders Relationship Committee in all
other Listed Public Limited Companies have been
considered.

Board Meetings:

During the vyear, 4 (Four) Board Meetings
were held on June 04, 2021, August 07, 2021,

November 13,2021 and February 12, 2022
and the Annual General Meeting was held on
July 23, 2021.

Independent Directors Meeting:

There was one Independent Directors Meeting held
on March 11, 2022. All three Independent Directors
were present at the said meeting.
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Board procedures:

Agenda papers for the Board and committee meeting
are finalised in consultation with concern persons.
The minutes of proceeding of each board meetings
are maintained in terms of statutory provisions. The
minutes of committee are placed before the Board
on regular basis. The Agenda and notes to agenda
for the Board & Committee meetings are circulated
in advance to the Board members. The items in the
Agenda are backed by comprehensive background
information to enable the Board to take appropriate
decisions. In addition to the information required under
the provision of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,
(Listing Regulation/Uniform Listing Agreement) the
Board is also kept informed of major events/items and
approvals taken wherever necessary. The Chairman
& Managing Director/Executive (s), at the Board
Meetings, keeps the Board apprised of the overall
performance of the Company.

Performance Evaluation:

During the year under review, the Board designed
and conducted a formal evaluation mechanism for
evaluating performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual directors including the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company.

Familiarisation Programme for Board Members:

The Company designed the programmes and
measures to familiarise Independent Directors
regarding Company, its business, updates, growth
includes various measures i.e. issue of appointment
letters containing the terms of appointment, duties,
responsibilities etc. The policy and programme
aims to provide insights into the Company to enable
independent directors to understand the business,
manufacturing, finance and other related matters. The
details of such familiarisation programmes have been
displayed under the head Investor on the Company’s
website at www.bpml.in.

Audit Committee
Terms of Reference:

The scope of activities of the Audit Committee is as
set out in Regulation 18, Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulation) read
with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. These
broadly includes oversights of financial reporting
process, review reports of the Internal Auditors
and to discuss the same with them periodically, to
meet Statutory Auditors to discuss their findings/
suggestions, to review weaknesses in internal controls
reported by Internal and Statutory Auditors and internal
control systems, appointment and payment to statutory
auditors, approval of related party transactions, to
review quarterly/half yearly/annual financial results
and other matters.

@
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Audit Committee Composition:

The Audit Committee consists 3 (Three) Independent
Directors and 1 (one) Whole time Director having
requisite  knowledge of Finance, Accounts and
Company Law. The composition of the Audit Committee
meets with the requirements of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 (1) of SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company Secretary,
Shri Omprakash Singh, acts as the Secretary of the
Committee. The Chairman of the Committee was
present at the last Annual General Meeting.

Audit Committee Meetings:

During the year under review, the Committee met
4 (four) times on June 04, 2021, August 07, 2021,
November 13, 2021 and February 12, 2022.

Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation No. of
meeting
attended

Shri Dileep H. Shinde* Chairman 2

Shri Harish N. Motiwalla # | Member 3

Shri Rakesh N. Garodia Member 4

Smt. Meghna S. Shah Member 4

Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar | Member 4

Shri Dileep H. Shinde was appointed as Additional
Independent Director w.e.f August 07, 2021.

Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned as an Independent
Director w.e.f March 04, 2022.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
Terms of Reference:

Terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee includes the matters
specified under section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 (Listing Regulation). The main reference includes
formulation of remuneration policy, remuneration
payable and determining the package to the Managing
Directors, Executive Directors and Whole-time
Directors, commission to be paid to the Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Meetings:

During the year under review, there were one Meeting
held on 7% August, 2021.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Composition, Meetings held and Attendance:

Composition:

The Committee consists of three wholly Non-Executive
and Independent Directors, as under:
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Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation No of
Meeting
attended

Shri Harish N. Motiwalla # | Chairman 1

Shri Dileep H. Shinde ## | Chairman -

Shri Rakesh N. Garodia Member 1

Smt Meghna S. Shah Member 1

# Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned as an
Independent Director w.e.f March 04, 2022.

## Board Reconstituted Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and appointed Shri Dileep H. Shinde as
Chairaman of the committee w.e.f. May 24, 2022.

All the Members of this Committee are an Independent
Director.

Remuneration Policy:

The Board on recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee approved Remuneration
Policy (Nomination and Remuneration policy has
been posted on the website of the Company at www.
bpml.in) for Directors, KMP and Senior Management
Employees as enumerated below:

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive
remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement
of expenses for participation in the Board/ Committee
meetings and commission, if any, subject to approval
of the members.

Remuneration of Managing Director/Executive
Director/Whole Time Directors.

At the time of appointment or re-appointment of
the Managing Director/Executive Director/ Whole
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Time Director, such remuneration shall be paid as
may be mutually agreed between the Company
(which includes the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors) and the
Managing Director /Executive Director / Whole Time
Director within the overall limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of
the Members of the Company in General Meeting.

The remuneration of the Managing Director/Executive
Director/Whole Time Director are broadly divided into
Basic Salary, Allowances, perquisites, amenities,
retirement benefits and commission (subject to
availability of profits).

In determining the remuneration the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall ensure/ consider the
following :-

a. Therelationship of remuneration and performance
benchmark is clear.

b. Responsibility required to be shouldered by the
Managing Director/ Executive Director/Whole
Time Director, the industry benchmarks and the
current trends.

The company’s performance vis-a-vis the annual
budget achievement and individual performance vis-
a-vis the KRAs/KPIs.

Remuneration of Senior Management Employees:

The Board, on the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee approves
the remuneration payable to the KMP and Senior
Management Personnel. The structure of remuneration
payable to KMP and Senior Management Personnel
will be in accordance with the compensation framework
adopted for employees by the HR department of the
Company.

Details of Directors’ Remuneration * for the year 2021-22 are given below:-

(0 in Lacs)

Name of Director Salary Sitting Commission Total

& Other Fees Remuneration

Perquisites

Shri Anurag Poddar @ - - - -
Shri Ankit Poddar @ - - - -
Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar * 39.026 39.026
Shri Dileep H. Shinde - 0.600 0.600
Shri Rakesh N. Garodia - 1.025 1.025
Smt. Meghna S. Shah 0.925 0.925
Shri Harish N. Motiwalla # 0.700 0.700
Total 39.026 3.250 42.276

@ Shri Anurag Poddar, Chairman and Managing Director and Shri Ankit Poddar, Executive Director have forgone
their monthly remuneration due to poor financial position of the Company with effect from 1t April, 2019 and

continue to do so till further communication.
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V.

VL.

Remuneration includes Basic Salary, Allowance
and Perquisites.

# Shri Harish N. Motiwalla has resigned as an
Independent Director w.e.f March 04, 2022.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
Terms of Reference:

Term of Reference and role of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee includes the matters
specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Stakeholders
Relationship Committee deals with all matters relating
to Stakeholders/Investors Grievance and its redressal.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings:

During the year, the committee met four times on June
04, 2021, August 07, 2021, November 13, 2021 and
February 12, 2022.

Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation No of
Meeting
attended

Shri Rakesh N. Garodia Chairman 4

Shri Harish N. Motiwalla # | Member 3

Shri Dileep H. Shinde | Member -

#H

Shri Anurag Poddar Member 4

Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar | Member 4

# Shri Harish N. Motiwalla resigned as an
Independent Director w.e.f March 04, 2022.

## Board Reconstituted Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and appointed Shri Dileep H. Shinde
as Member of the committee w.e.f. May 24, 2022.

Stakeholders Grievance Redressal:

During the year ended March 31, 2022, no
Shareholders’ Complaints were received. There were
no outstanding complaints at the end of the year.

The Company Secretary, Shri Omprakash Singh, has
been designated as Compliance Officer.

Risk Management Committee
Terms of Reference:

The Committee is formed with the object to monitor
and review risk management plan of the Company,
cyber security and such other functions as may be
included in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from
time to time.

Risk Management Committee Meetings:

During the year under review, the Committee met four
times on June 04, 2021, August 07, 2021, November
13, 2021 and February 12, 2022.

VIL.
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Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:

Name of the Member | Designation No of
Meeting
attended

Shri. Anurag Poddar | Chairman 4

Shri Ankit Poddar Member 4

Shri Shrutisheel Member 4

Jhanwar

Shri Harish N. Member -

Motiwalla #

Shri Dileep H. Shinde | Member -

#H

# ShriHarish N. Motiwalla appointed as a member of
the Risk Management Committee w.e.f February
12,2022 and resigned as an Independent Director
w.e.f March 04, 2022.

## Board Reconstituted Risk  Management
Committee Meetings and appointed Shri Dileep
H. Shinde as Member of the committee w.e.f. May
24, 2022.

Other Committees:
Share Transfer Committee:
Terms of Reference:

The Share Transfer Committee deals with all matters
relating to transfer of Shares, issue of duplicate/
new shares, sub-divided and consolidated share
certificates, demat / remat.

Share Transfer Committee Meetings:

During the year under review, there was one meeting
held on 215t December, 2021.

Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:

Name of the Member Designation No of
Meeting
attended

Shri. Anurag Poddar Chairman 1
Shri Ankit Poddar Member 1
Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar | Member 1

Finance Committee
Terms of Reference:

The Finance Committee deals with matters relating to
exercising borrowing powers delegated by the Board
and opening/closing bank accounts and other banking
matters.

Finance Committee Meeting:

During the year under review, the Committee met 3
(Three) times on February 24, 2022, March 07, 2022,
March 22, 2022.
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Name of the Committee Members along with their
attendance is given below:
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e Re-appointment of Smt Meghna
S. Shah as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company
for the period from 11th February,
2020 to 10th February, 2025.

Name of the Member Designation No of
Meeting
attended

Shri. Anurag Poddar Chairman 3

Shri Ankit Poddar Member 3

Shri Shrutisheel Jhanwar Member 3

VIIl. Independents Directors Meeting.

All the Independents Directors’ of the company met
once on 11" March, 2022 during the Financial year,
inter-alia, to consider:

» the performance for Non-Independent Directors
and the Board as a whole.

» the performance of the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company.

« assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of
flow of information.

04.09.2020 o

Re-appointment of Shri Anurag

Poddar as a Chairman and

Managing Director of the Company

for the period from 11" February,

2021 to 10" February, 2024.

e Re-appointment of Shri  Ankit
Poddar as an Executive Director of
the Company for the period from
11™ February, 2021 to 10" February,
2024.

e Re-appointment of Shri Shrutisheel

Jhanwar as an Whole-time Director

& CFO of the Company for the

period from 11" February, 2021 to

10" February, 2024.

23.07.2021 .

No Special Resolution was passed
in this AGM.

IX. Information on Annual General Meeting: Special Resolutions passed through postal ballot

Financial | Date Time Venue
Year
2018-19 | 9" September, | 2.30 p.m | “18.99 Latitude
2019 Banquets” 4th Floor, 1.
Trade View Building,
Gate No.4, Kamala
Mills  Compound,
Lower Parel,
Mumbai- 400013. 2.
2019-20 | 4" September, | 3.00 p.m | Through Video
2020 Conferencing (VC)/
other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM). 3.
2020-21 | 23 July, 2021 | 3.00 p.m | Through Video
Conferencing (VC)/
other Audio Visual
Means (OAVM).
The following are the special resolutions passed at AGM
during last three financial years.
Date of AGM | Summary of Special Resolution passed
09.09.2019 e Re-appointment of Shri Harish N.
Motiwalla as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company
for the period from 11" February,
2020 to 10" February, 2025. X.
e Re-appointment of Shri Rakesh N.
Garodia as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company
for the period from 11th February,
2020 to 10th February, 2025.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the following special
resolution passed through Postal Ballot as provided under
Section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company
from ¥ 36 Crores to ¥ 118 Crores and amendments
of existing clause V (a) of the Memorandum of
Association with new clause V (a).

Offer or invite to subscribe, issue and allot 60,00,000
6.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of ¥100/- each for cash at par on preferential /
private placement basis.

Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures not exceeding
¥ 20 Crores on Private Placement basis.

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the following
special resolution passed through Postal Ballot as
provided under Section 110 of the Companies Act,
2013:

1. Reclassification, Increase in Authorised Share
Capital and Alteration of the capital clause.

2. Offer or invite to subscribe, issue and allot
50,00,000- 6.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of ¥100/- each for cash at par
on preferential /private placement basis.

Code of Conduct

The code of conductforthe Directors andthe Employees
of the Company has been laid down by the Board and
it is internally circulated and necessary declaration
has been obtained. Declaration regarding compliance
by Board Members and Senior Management with
the said code is given in Annexure-A to this Report.
In addition the Company has framed a Code of
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Xl.

Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading based on
SEBI (Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The Code
is applicable to all the Directors and Designated
Employees. The Code also aims to prevent dealing in
the shares by persons having access to unpublished
price sensitive information.

Means of Communication:

The Board of Directors of the Company approves and
takes on record the quarterly, half yearly and annual
results and announces forthwith results to all the
Stock Exchanges, where the shares are listed. The
same are published in one English daily newspaper
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and one Marathi newspaper (Mumbai edition) and
displayed on the Company’s website- www.bpmlL.in.

Annual Report containing inter-alia, Board’s Report,
Auditor’s Report, Audited Financial Statements etc.
circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The
Annual Report is also available on the website of the
Company.

Website: The Company’s website www.bpml.in
contains an exclusive head “Investor Relations” where
shareholders information is available. Quarterly and
annual financial results, annual report, notice of AGM,
shareholding pattern, corporate governance etc. are

Xll. General Shareholder Information:

also available on the website.

1. | Annual General Meeting :
Day/ Date:

Time :

Venue:

Friday, 09.09.2022
3.00 p.m.
Through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual means.

2. | Financial Calendar (Tentative)

Financial Year of the Company

1t April, 2022 to 31t March, 2023.

Results for the Quarter ending:
June 30, 2022

September 30, 2022
December 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

On or before 14" August, 2022.

On or before 14" November, 2022.

On or before 14" February, 2023

On or before 15" May, 2023(Unaudited) or
Or on or before 30" May, 2023 (Audited).

3. | Date of Book Closure:

Saturday, 03.09.2022 to Friday, 09.09.2022 (both days
inclusive).

4. | Dividend

The Board has not recommended the dividend for the year under
review.

5. | Listing of Equity Shares on the Stock
Exchanges:

1. BSE Limited.
P. J. Towers
Dalal Street, Fort
Mumbai 400 001.

2. National Stock Exchange of
India Ltd.
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East),
Mumbai 400 051

The Company has paid annual listing fee for the F.Y. 2022-23.

6. Stock Code/Symbol:

(a) Stock Exchange Stock Code/ Symbol
1. BSE Ltd. 539251
2. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. BALKRISHNA

(b) Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL for Equity Shares INE875R01011

7. Stock Market Price Data:

Month BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange (NSE)
High? Low? High% Low?
April-2021 21.95 18.35 21.60 18.05
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May-2021 27.55 18.50 29.25 18.40
June-2021 25.60 17.35 23.15 17.70
July-2021 32.60 17.10 33.50 17.10
Aug-2021 31.70 28.65 30.55 29.05
Sep-2021 27.25 20.15 27.60 19.50
Oct-2021 26.10 19.00 26.00 18.35
Nov-2021 27.75 22.35 27.80 22.10
Dec-2021 36.15 23.45 36.60 23.40
Jan-2022 50.60 34.30 51.30 34.25
Feb-2022 58.45 39.30 58.10 39.90
Mar-2022 51.85 36.25 55.50 35.90

8. Performance of Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited share price in comparison to BSE Sensex.

50.00 — 50000.00
45.00 + + 48500.00

+ 47000.00
40.00 -+

+ 45500.00
35.00 +

+ 44000.00
30.00 +

+ 42500.00
25.00 + - + 41000.00
20.00 — f t t t f f t t t t 359500.00

Apr-21 May- Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21Sep-21 0ct-21MNov-210ec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22Mar-22
21
—=— Balkrishna =—==B5E

9. Registrar and Transfer Agents:

Name and Address of New RTA: Tel: 23012518 / 23016761

Purva Sharegistry India Private Limited Fax: 23012517

9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, Email : support@purvashare.com
J.R. Boricha Marg, Website: www.purvashare.com
Lower Parel East, Mumbai- 400011.

10. Share Transfer System:

The shares received for transfers duly completed in all respect in physical form are registered and dispatched
normally within three weeks. Demat confirmations are normally sent within two weeks. All transfer requests received
are processed and approved by the Share Transfer Committee.
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1.

12.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2022.

Annual

Report 2021-2022

Category (Equity No. of % of Shareholders | No. of Shares % Shareholding
Shares) Shareholders held
1-500 9609 88.70 653291 6.08
501-1000 513 4.73 422576 3.93
1001-2000 311 2.87 477026 4.44
2001-3000 130 1.20 333822 3.1
3001-4000 57 0.53 201448 1.88
4001-5000 51 0.47 237837 2.21
5001-10000 83 0.77 604955 5.63
10001 and Above 79 0.73 7808889 72.71
TOTAL 10833 100.00 10739844 100
Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 2022.
Sr.No. Category No. of shares Percentage of
held Shareholding
1 Promoters 6304748 58.70
2 Banks/Financial Institutions 27 0.00
3 Flls/OCBs/Foreign Companies 0 0.00
4 Private Corporate Bodies 434385 4.05
5 Mutual Funds/UTl/Insurance Cos 0 0.00
6 Non Residents Individuals (Non Repat) 45828 0.43
7 Non Residents Individuals (Repat) 19233 0.18
8 Indian Public /Trusts 3622672 33.73
9 Clearing Members 49594 0.46
10 Hindu Undivided Family 254327 2.37
11 NBFCs registered with RBI 9030 0.08
TOTAL 10739844 100.00

13. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

14.

98.71% of the Company’s paid up Equity Share
Capital is held in dematerialized form with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Ltd., (CDSL) as on March
31, 2022.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any
Convertible instruments:

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/
Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past
and hence as on March 31, 2022, the Company does
not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or
any convertible instruments.

15. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and

hedging activities.

Risks are associated with various forex exposures
like translation, transaction, economic etc. which the
Company would have on risk on netimport side. Import
exposures include Trade Payables, Trade Buyer’s
Credit, Interest Payable, CAPEX Buyer’s Credit etc.
and Export Exposure Includes Trade Receivable etc.

There are various financial instruments for hedging
which are available to mitigate these risks like Forward
Contracts, Option Contracts and interest rate swap.
Based on the risks involved in the hedging instrument,

the Company is normally using Forward Cover as
measure for mitigating the Forex Volatility.

The ECB Loan in Foreign Currency are fully hedged.
Further, the Company has hedged the interest rate
swap on the said ECB Loan also.

16. Plant Locations:

17.

Paper/Paper Board & Coating Plant:

Village Ambivali P.O. Mohane, Taluka Kalyan,

Dist Thane-421102.

Address for Correspondence:

BALKRISHNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Registered Office

A/7, Trade World, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel (W), Mumbai- 400013.

Tel. No: 022-6120 7900. Fax No.: 022-6120 7999
Website : www.bpml.in

Email: opsingh@bpml.in

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited

Unit No.9, Ground Floor,Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt,
J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai- 400011.

Tel: 022-23016761/ 022-23012518

Fax: 022-23012517

Email: support@purvashare.com
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XIIl. Other Disclosures:

1.

10.

During the year under review, there were no materially
significant transactions with related parties that
may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company. All Related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Note No. 37 to Financial Statements
and in Board’s Report.

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any
statutory authority on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years.

All Indian Accounting Standards mandatorily required
have been followed in preparation of financial
statements and no deviation has been made in
following the same.

The Company has a well-defined Risk Management
Policy covering identifying business risks of the
Company and laying procedures for minimizing the
risk.

No money was raised by the Company through
public issue, rights issue, preferential issues etc., in
the last financial year, except allotment of 50,00,000
Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each amounting to
% 50,00,00,000/- to promoter / Promoter Group on
preferential basis (Unlisted).

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for
Directors and Employees for establishing a vigil
mechanism to report to the management instances
of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of Company’s code of conduct or ethical
policy. The Policy ensures that strict confidentiality
is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also
that no discrimination will be meted out to any person
for a genuinely raised concern. No employee of the
Company was denied access to the Audit Committee.
The protected disclosure should be made to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee to the email ID:
dhshinde @rediffmail.com.

The Company is in compliance with all mandatory
requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and
the adoption non-mandatory requirements are being
reviewed by the Board from time-to-time.

There were no pecuniary relationships or transactions
of non-executive director’s vis-a-vis the Company
during the year under review, except payment of
sitting fees & in the case of Advocate Sukesh Shah
who is relative of independent director, Smt. Meghna
Sukesh Shah.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32(7A) :

The Proceeds of the preferential issue of Preference
Shares have been completely utilized as per the terms
of the issue of Preference Shares.

Policy on Dealing with Related Party Transaction.
The Board has approved Policy on Dealing with
Related Party Transaction which is uploaded on the
website of the Company i.e. www.bpml.in.
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11. The Company familiarizes its Independent Directors

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

18.

with their roles, responsibilities in the Company, nature
ofthe industry in which the Company operates, etc.,
through various programs. These include orientation
program upon induction of new Directors, as well as
other initiatives to update the Directors on an ongoing
basis. Further, the Company also makes periodic
presentations at the Board and Committee meetings
on various aspects of the Company’s business,
strategy, operations and functions.

The code of conduct for the Directors and the
Employees of the Company has been laid down by
the Board and itis internally circulated and necessary
declaration has been obtained. The said code is
uploaded on the website ofthe Company at www.
bpml.in. Declaration regarding compliance by Board
Members and Senior Management withthe said code
is given in Annexure-A to this Report.

The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading based on SEBI (Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Code is applicable
to all the Directors and Designated Employees. The
Code also aims to prevent dealing in the shares by
persons having access to unpublished price sensitive
information. This policy alsoprovides for periodical
disclosures from the designated person as well as
pre-clearances of transactions by such persons.

In compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading Regulations) 2015, as amended
from time to time, to preserve the confidentiality
and prevent misuse of unpublished price sensitive
information (UPSI)/Leak of UPSI, the Company
has adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information. The Codes are available on the website
of the Company at www.bpml.in.

The Company has no subsidiaries.

The Management Discussions and Analysis Report
forms part of the Annual Report.

Credit Rating : Details of credit rating and its revisions
are given below : -

Instrument | Rating Rating Revision
Agency

Long Term CRISIL | CRISIL Reaffirmed

Rating BB/Stable

Short Term | CRISIL | CRISIL Reaffirmed

Rating Ad+

The Company has obtained a certificate from
M/s GMJ & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries that none of the Directors of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by
the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority.

Total fees payable to the statutory auditors,
M/s. Jayantilal Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountants
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is given in below Table and also mentioned in Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries of the
Note No.42 to the Financial Statement : Company and the same was filed with the Stock
- . Exchanges.

P | R Lakh

artllcu ars S In -akhs 20. This Corporate Governance Report of the Company
Audit Fees 5,75,000 for the year 2021-22 is in compliance with the
Other fees (i.e Tax Audit, Taxation 4,75,200 requirements of Corporate Governance under
Certification etc.)  of (DI
Total 10,50,200 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anurag P. Poddar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00599143

19. Annual Secretarial Compliance report: Pursuant to
SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th
February, 2019, the Company has obtained Annual

Secretarial Compliance Report from M/s GMJ & Place: Mumbai.

Date : 24" May, 2022

Annexure — A
Declaration
In accordance with the Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, I, hereby declare that all the Directors and
the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company
laid down for them, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anurag P.Poddar
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:00599143
Place: Mumbai.
Date : 24" May, 2022

CERTIFICATION BY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER TO THE BOARD
We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company to the best of knowledge and belief certify that:
(a) We have reviewed financial statements for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and belief :
i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

i) These statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Company and of the results of operations and
cash flows. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity, in all material respects, with the existing
generally accepted accounting principles including Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control system for financial reporting. This is monitored by
the internal audit function, which encompasses the examination and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness.
Internal audit works with all levels of management and statutory auditors, and report significant issues to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The auditors and audit committee are apprised of any corrective action taken with regard
to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

We indicate to the Auditors and to the Audit Committee:

i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statments;

i) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware of and which involve management or other employees
who have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over the financial reporting. However, during the
year there were no such changes or instances.

For BALKRISHNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Anurag P Poddar Shrutisheel Jhanwar
Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director & CFO
DIN:00599143 DIN:03582803

Place: Mumbai
Date : 24" May, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
BALKRISHNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

1.

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by
Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited (“the Company”),
contains details as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para
C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
(“the Listing Regulations”) (‘applicable criteria’)
with respect to Corporate Governance for the year
ended 31stMarch, 2022. This report is required by
the Company for annual submission to the Stock
exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the
Company.

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with
the conditions of SEBI Listing Regulations

The preparation of the Corporate Governance
Report is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company including the preparation and maintenance
of all relevant supporting records and documents.
This responsibility also includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Management along with the Board of Directors
are also responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4.

Our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance
in the form of an opinion whether the Company has
complied with the condition of Corporate Governance,
as stipulated in the Listing Regulation.

We conducted our examination in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes, Guidance Note on Certification of
Corporate Governance, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for
the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable
requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits
and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

7.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks
associated in compliance of the Corporate Governance
Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures
includes but not limited to verification of secretarial
records and financial information of the Company and
obtained necessary representations and declarations
from directors including independent directors of the
Company.

The procedures also include examining evidence
supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance
Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work
under this report did not involve us performing audit
tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information
or the financial statements of the Company taken as a
whole.

Opinion

9.

Based on the procedures performed by us as referred
in paragraph 7 and 8 above and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we are of
the opinion that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year
ended March 31, 2022, referred to in paragraph 1
above.

Other matters and restriction on use

10. This Report is neither an assurance as to the

1.

future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

The certificate is addressed and provided to the
members of the Company solely for the purpose to
enable the Company to comply with the requirement
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, and it should not be
used by any other person or for any other purpose.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability
or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

For JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(FIRM REG. NO. 104133W)

DILIP J. THAKKAR

PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP NO. 005369
UDIN:22005369AJMLQY8171

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: 24™ MAY 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

BALKRISHNA PAPER MILLS LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Balkrishna Paper Mills Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31t March 2022, the
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of cash flows and the statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31st March, 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 45 with respect to the losses
incurred by the company and erosion of its net worth and
preparation of the financial statements on going concern
assumption, based on the reasons and assumptions
stated in the aforesaid note. The company’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent on generation of
the expected cash flows to be able to meet its obligations
as and when they arise.

Further the Company has undertaken various measures
to improve its performance, such as improvement in
capacity utilization, improvement in quality, reduction in
cost, production of different product mix to get better value
addition etc., all these will lead to improved profitability.
Management is confident that with all these measures
undertaken will result in improved future Cash Flows,
thereby the company will be in a position to fulfill its
obligation without any difficulty. Accordingly the financial
statement has been prepared on a going concern basis.

Also during the fourth quarter of the current financial
year, the company took temporary shut-down of factory to
improve the productivity and efficiency of manufacturing
activities. Major work in that respect has been completed.
To get full impact of improvement further debottlenecking
of manufacturing activities are required, which would be
done in due course.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the same.
Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No.46 of the accompanying
financial results, which describes the management’s
evaluation of impact of uncertainties related to COVID-I9
and its consequential effects on the operations of the
Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

In view of continued losses, the Company’s performance
is dependent on proper accounting of Revenue and is
therefore susceptible to misstatement. Cut-off is the key
assertion in so far as revenue recognition is concerned,
since an inappropriate cut-off can result in material
misstatement of results for the year.

Auditor’s response

Our audit procedures with regard to revenue recognition
included testing controls, automated and manual,
dispatches/deliveries, inventory reconciliations and
assessing the recoverability of trade receivable balances,
substantive testing for cut-offs and analytical review
procedures.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial

Statements
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit / loss (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management
and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also :
¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
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forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of
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(A)

the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that :

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as

required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and

Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements

comply with the Ind AS specified under Section

133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations

received from the directors as on 31t March, 2022

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none

of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March,

2022 from being appointed as a director in terms

of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included

in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as
amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us,

the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in

the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations as at 31st March, 2022 on
its financial position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

V.
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iv. (@) The Management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested
( either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented,
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that
have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11
(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid

any dividend during the year and has not

proposed final dividend for the year.

For JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(FIRM REG. NO. 104133W)

DILIP J. THAKKAR
PARTNER

MEMBERSHIP NO. 005369
UDIN: 22005369AJMLAK4082

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE : 24™ MAY 2022
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ANNEXURE - A TO AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of the Company on the financial statements

for the year ended 31st March 2022, we report that:

@iy (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) As explained to us, physical verification of these
Property, Plant and Equipment is being conducted
by the management at intervals during the year,
which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of assets.
According to the information and explanations
given to us no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds
of immovable properties (other than properties
where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its
operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventories were
noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when compared with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crores, in
aggregate, atany point of time during the year, from
banks on the basis of security of current assets. In
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our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the quarterly returns
and statements comprising (stock statements,
book debt statements, and statements on ageing
analysis of the debtors) filed by the Company
with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the audited books of account of
the Company, of the respective quarters.

(i) The Company has not made any investments in,
provided any guarantee or security, and granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act,
with respect to loans, investments and guarantees
made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits from the public within the meaning
of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, and the rules framed
thereunder.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company in respect of products
where, pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government, the maintenance of cost records have
been prescribed under Section 148 (1) of the Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determining
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company and
the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has generally been regularly depositing
with the appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insura